Town of Rockport Planning Board
Thursday, July 23, 2020 — 5:30 p.m.
Meeting Minutes
Via Zoom

Board Present: Chair Joe Sternowski, Vice Chair John Viehman, Victoria Condon,
Tom Laurent, Mark Haley

Board Absent: Ted Skowronski

Staff Present: Planner and Community Development Director William Najpauer

Due to technical difficulties at the Opera House, no simulcast of this meeting was
possible. However, Mr. Sternowski noted that he would record the meeting on Zoom.
The recording will be posted. Because the only item on the agenda was a preliminary
application, which would involve no public comment, this was deemed acceptable.

Meeting called to order at 5:36 p.m.
Item #1 Election of the Planning Board Chair and Vice Chair
The first item of business was the election of the Board chair and vice chair.

For the position of Board Chair, Mr. Viehman nominated Mr. Sternowski for reelection.
Ms. Condon seconded. No other names were put forth.

CARRIED 5-0-0

For the position of Board Vice Chair, Mr. Laurent nominated Mr. Viehman for reelection.
Ms. Condon seconded. No other names were put forth.

CARRIED 5-0-0

Item #2 Consideration of a subdivision pre-application submitted by Rockport
MHP LLC and represented by Landmark Corporation Surveyors and Engineers to
add 12 additional sites to an existing mobile home park located at 1110
Commercial Street Map 1 Lot 30.

Page 1 of 3
1 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020



(This subdivision proposal was previously approved by the Rockport Planning Board on
5/13/2009. The subdivision plan and other state and federal approvals have expired,
thereby requiring re-submittal of the subdivision application.)

Mr. Michael Sabatini of Landmark provided background for the board members: The
Rockport Mobile Home Park (previously the Patterson MHP) was first built in the 1960s
and is located on 27 acres off Commercial Street.

Mr. Sabatini noted that the plan for expansion would include 12 additional lots including
water and sewer, overhead utilities, streets, and landscaping design. Back in 2006 the
plan went through an extensive permitting process, and in 2009 stormwater and
wetlands approvals were received from the state.

His question for the Board was regarding Article 9 of the Land Use Ordinance, and
whether under that ordinance a new application is required to move ahead, or if this
application would be considered a revision.

Mr. Viehman asked what work has been done under the previous permitting. Mr.
Sabatini responded that the only work that has been done is the placement of fill in the
area of the plan that is labeled Lily Bea Lane. When Mr. Viehman asked why nothing
further had been done, Mr. Sabatini responded that he assumed that the delay was
caused by economic factors.

Mr. Sternowski noted that there is a two-year time limit for a performance guarantee,
and that projects are required to be registered with Knox County within three (3) years.
Also, there is a requirement that substantial work be done within five (5) years or the
plan is null and void.

Mr. Sabatini said he did not know about the status of the guarantee, but he said that the
plan had not been recorded with the county.

Mr. Sternowski said that, in light of the time lapse, the project must begin with the
preliminary plan again. Mr. Viehman agreed. Mr. Laurent asked for confirmation that
no work on the site should be done until a plan is approved, and Mr. Najpauer
confirmed. Mr. Najpauer noted that the existing park is fine, but the expansion plan is
null and void.

No vote was deemed necessary on the determination that a new preliminary plan will be
needed.

Mr. Sabatini thanked the board and said he would be back in touch soon.

Item # 3 Consideration of the following meeting minutes: June 4, 2020, and June
25, 2020

Page 2 of 3
2 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020



Review of June 4 minutes: Mr. Laurent noted that he had made many formatting
corrections to several items.

MOTION: Mr. Laurent moved to approve the minutes of the June 4 meeting as
amended. Seconded by Mr. Sternowski.

CARRIED 4-0-1 (Mr. Haley abstained)

Review of June 25 minutes: Mr. Sternowski and Ms. Condon noted that the minutes
were confusing and unclear. The approval of the June 25 minutes was tabled so the
recording of the meeting could be reviewed and the minutes corrected.

#4. Selecting Planning Board Representatives to the Ordinance Review
Committee

Mr. Sternowski noted that new Board representatives to the ORC are needed. He said
that the planning board members provide a valuable perspective to the other members
of the ORC. The ORC meets at 8 a.m. on Wednesdays from January through March to
look at proposed changes and prepare them for the June ballot. Mr. Sternowski has
been going to meetings in order to stay in the loop. He asked members to consider
volunteering for this role.

Item #5 Other business:

Mr. Laurent asked if the Planning Board has a role in the current appeal to the ZBA. Mr.
Sternowski said no. Mr. Najpauer noted that attorneys will be speaking to the board
next week.

New recording secretary: Fran Hodgkins. Thank you to Mandy Marriner Everett for
helping out and filling in until a new recording secretary was found.

#6. Adjournment

MOTION: Mr. Laurent moved to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Mr. Haley.

CARRIED 5-0-0 The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Fran Hodgkins

Page 3 of 3
3 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020



